
MEETING NOTICE 
VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK 

MEETING OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a Committee of the Whole Meeting of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook 
and Will Counties, Illinois will be held on Tuesday, February 4, 2020, beginning at 7:15 p.m. in Council Chambers, 
located in the Tinley Park Village Hall, 16250 South Oak Park Avenue, Tinley Park, Illinois 60477. 

 
The agenda is as follows: 
 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER. 
 

2. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
MEETING HELD ON JANUARY 14, 2020.  

 
3. REVIEW CANNABIS SURVEY RESULTS. 

 
4. DISCUSS FISCAL YEAR 2021 PAVEMENT MANAGEMENT PROGRAM (PMP): 

a. MOTOR FUEL TAX RESOLUTION; AND 
b. MOTOR FUEL TAX ENGINEERING AGREEMENT. 

 
5. DISCUSS AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK AND PROVIDENCE 

BANK & TRUST CONSENTING TO THE COLLATERAL ASSIGNMENT OF THE SOUTH 
STREET REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT. 

 
6. DISCUSS PARKING AGREEMENT FOR ENGLISH GARDEN, 16800 OAK PARK AVENUE. 

 
7. DISCUSS CIVIL SERVICE RULES & REGULATIONS. 

 
8. RECEIVE COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC. 

 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 

KRISTIN A. THIRION 
VILLAGE CLERK  



 

 
MINUTES 

Meeting of the Committee of the Whole 
 January 14, 2020 – 6:30 p.m. 
 Village Hall - Council Chambers 
 16250 S Oak Park Ave. 

Tinley Park, IL 60477 
 
Members Present:  J. Vandenberg, Village President 
  K. Thirion, Village Clerk  
    W. Brady, Village Trustee 
    W. Brennan, Village Trustee 
    D. Galante, Village Trustee 
    M. Glotz, P Trustee 
                          M. Mueller, Village Trustee 
         
Members Absent:  C. Berg, Village Trustee 
   
Staff Present:   D. Niemeyer, Village Manager 
    P. Carr, Assistant Village Manager 
    F. Reeder, Fire Chief 
    M. Walsh, Police Chief 
    B. Bettenhausen, Finance Director 
    K. Clarke, Community Development Director  
    J. Urbanski, Assistant Public Works Director 
    D. Framke, Marketing Director 
 
Others Present:    
           
Item #1 - The meeting of the Committee of the Whole was called to order at 6:40 p.m. on January 14, 
2020. 
 
Item #2 - CONSIDER APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE 
WHOLE MEETING HELD ON JANUARY 7, 2020. – Motion was made by Trustee Brennan, 
seconded by Trustee Mueller, to approve the minutes of the Committee of the Whole meeting held on 
January 7, 2020. Vote by voice call. President Pro-Tem Glotz declared the motion carried. 
 
Item #3 -RECEIVE UPDATE ON STRATEGIC PLAN – Dave Niemeyer, Village Manager, 
introduced Jacquelyn McCray, Senior Manager at Management Partners, to present the draft Strategic 
Plan. This plan includes input from the Board, senior staff, employee groups, and members of the 
business community, as well as feedback from the recent citizen survey. Kimberly Clarke, Donna 
Framke, Pat Carr, and Hannah Lipman led staff to further develop the various goals and strategies. 
Strategic Plan Elements presented were Vision, Mission, Values, Goals, Strategies, and the 
Implementation Action Plan. 
 
Management Partners will continue to work with Village staff on an Implementation Action Plan that 
will serve as a guide to accomplishing the goals and strategies of this plan. Initial measures for the 
different goals have been included in this draft, and will continue to be developed as a part of the 
Implementation Action Plan. Any changes will be made to the draft will be presented in February. 
 



 
 
 

Page 2 of 5 
 
 
 

Trustee Brady, Trustee Mueller and Trustee Glotz thanked Ms. McCray and the team for all of the work 
put into the plan. 
 
Item #4 – RECEIVE UPDATE ON NOVEMBER REVENUES AND BUDGET VERSUS 
ACTUAL REPORT – Brad Bettenhausen, Finance Director, presented the November report, 
summarizing the status of the revenues and expenses.  
 

Sales Tax – November reporting – August sales activity 
 This Month Fiscal Year to Date 
This Fiscal Year 1,268,959 8,533,144 
Last Fiscal Year  1,293,272  8,691,190 
Dollars change  -24,313  -158,046 
Percent change  -1.9%  -1.8% 

 
Home Rule Sales Tax – November reporting – August sales activity 

 This Month  Fiscal Year to Date 
This Fiscal Year  518,805  3,469,778 
Last Fiscal Year  533,942  3,485,702 
Dollars change  -15,137  -15,924 
Percent change  -2.8%  -0.5% 

 
Use Tax - November reporting – August sales activity 

 This Month Fiscal Year to Date 
This Fiscal Year  148,180  1,041,260 
Last Fiscal Year  126,134  885,434 
Dollars change  22,045  155,826 
Percent change  17.5%  17.6% 
   

 
Use tax is the sales tax collected on out-of-state purchases shipped to Illinois (internet sales) and 
merchandise used by retailers where sales tax had not previously been paid. Increases in the 
Use Tax continue to be partially attributable to the “Wayfair” decision that has largely made 
internet sales subject to sales tax. In the future more internet retailers will be required to register 
and calculate sales tax based on the delivery point.  
 
Trustee Brennan asked if an effective date for the point of delivery tax has been determined and 
if any preliminary estimates have been calculated. Mr. Bettenhausen stated that he believes it 
will be made effective in July 2020 to coincide with the new fiscal year, with impacts seen about 
3 months later. Currently there are no projections. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Income Tax – November reporting (share of taxes collected in October) 

 This Month 
Fiscal 

Year to Date 

This Fiscal Year 392,873 3,739,505 
Last Fiscal Year 389,546 3,257,696 



 
 
 

Page 3 of 5 
 
 
 

Dollars change  3,327 481,809 
Percent change  0.8% 14.8% 

 
Property Tax 
No unusual or unexpected fluctuations have been noted. 
 
Video Gaming – November activity reporting 
(Distributive share of net Video Gaming Terminal Income Tax for October) 
 

 This Month Fiscal Year to Date 
This Fiscal Year  42,687 287,481 
Last Fiscal Year  40,171  266,315 
Dollars change  2,516  21,166 
Percent change  6.3%  8.0% 

 
Motor Fuel Taxes - November reporting (share of taxes collected in October) 

 This Month Fiscal Year to Date 
This Fiscal Year  111,357  811,569 
Last Fiscal Year  135,848  850,714 
Dollars change  -24,491  -39,145 
Percent change  -18.0%  -4.6% 

 
Transportation Renewal Fund - November reporting (share of taxes collected in October) 

 This Month Fiscal Year to Date 
This Fiscal Year  76,573  246,190 
Last Fiscal Year   
Dollars change   
Percent change  100%  100% 

 
The Transportation Renewal Fund became effective 1 July 2019, as a result there is only current 
year data. The new funds are restricted to roadway maintenance activities in the same manner as 
the regular Motor Fuel Tax.  
 
Commuter Parking 
The number of daily pay spaces utilized for November 2019 were up modestly (0.6%) compared 
to the same month of the prior year. Year to date, space utilization reflected a small 2% increase 
comparative to the prior year to date. 

 
Item #5 – DISCUSS BOARD GOALS AND BUDGET SCHEDULE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021 – 
Mr. Niemeyer presented an update to the 36 goals developed for fiscal year 2020, noting that many of 
the top ranked items were economic development related.   
 
Based on past priorities and some Strategic Plan feedback, priorities for the 2021 fiscal year that may be 
considered are: 
 
Public Safety 

• Additional hiring, as resources allow, from the police staffing plan. 
• Investigate ways to use technology, resource sharing, and other efficiencies to reduce costs. 

 



 
 
 

Page 4 of 5 
 
 
 

Workforce Issues 
• Develop a more formal employee recognition program. 
• Improve internal communications. 
• Continue to improve customer service. 

 
Economic Development 

• Focus efforts to redevelop and attract new businesses to Park Center Plaza and Tinley Park 
Plaza. 

• Prepare infrastructure improvement plan to support development in the southwest corridor of 
Village. 

• Develop a plan to increase vibrancy of Downtown Tinley Park, specifically focus this year on 
North St., old Bremen Cash Store properties. 

• Reengage State to determine what their plans are for TPMHC, focus on clean-up efforts if the 
State does not move forward with selling property to Village. 
 

Neighborhood/business district stability 
• Develop a proactive code enforcement program. 
• Increase promotion and support of business retention. 
• Develop a program to welcome and engage new businesses. 
• Attract new businesses to fill current vacancies. 

 
Community Engagement/Tourism 

• Finalize land acquisition for Harmony Square and move towards construction. 
• Initiate trolley on music theater concert nights. 
• Continue to review relationship with Southland Convention & Visitors Bureau and determine 

how it can better serve our current tourism needs. 
• Expand community engagement efforts. 

 
Budget Schedule 
 
Tuesday, January 14, 2020 Overview of Board goals/Budget Schedule 
Tuesday, March 10, 2020  Discuss proposed budget with Board 
Tuesday, April 7,2020  PublicHearingonproposedfiscalyear2021budget and first reading of Ordinance. 
Tuesday, April 21,2020  AdoptionofBudgetfor2021Ordinance 

 
Mr. Niemeyer asked the Board for input regarding: additional priorities, to those listed earlier, that 
should be focused on; reprioritizing or eliminating current priorities/spending; additional revenues 
should be investigated, if any; and revenues should be eliminated, if any. 
 
Trustee Galante stated that she would like to see automation of forms, and software to assist in 
communications with the residents, as well as business retention beyond of the downtown area. 
 
Trustee Brennan stated he would like to see efficiencies at the Police Department increased with regards 
to paper tickets versus e-tickets and asked about the software costs. Matt Walsh, Police Chief replied that 
there is a 2021 Will County mandate for e-tickets but he does not have a cost for the software. 
 
Trustee Mueller noted that the Harlem Avenue corridor at 159th Street should be included in the 
economic development priorities. 



 
 
 

Page 5 of 5 
 
 
 

 
President Vandenberg would like to see senior transportation options investigated as well as one (1) part-
time intern in the Mayor’s office. 
 
Trustee Glotz asked Forest Reeder, Fire Chief, for an update on the new firehouse. Chief Reeder 
consulted John Urbanski, Assistant Director of Public Works. Mr. Urbanski stated that it is 59% 
complete. 
 
Item #6 – RECEIVE COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC – President Pro-Tem Glotz asked if there 
was any one else wished to address the Board. There were none. 
 
Motion was made by Trustee Brennan, seconded by Trustee Brady, to adjourn the Committee of the 
Whole. Vote by voice call. President Pro-Tem Glotz, declared the motion carried and adjourned the 
meeting at 7:15 p.m. 



 

 
 
 
Date: January 29, 2020  
 
To: Committee of the Whole, Tinley Park Village Board 
   
From: Donna Framke, Marketing Director 
 
Subject: Cannabis survey responses 
 
 
The Village opened a community-wide cannabis survey on January 3, 2020.  Postcards directing residents to an 
online survey link on the website were delivered via USPS to Tinley Park mailing addresses during the week of 
January 6. In addition, notice was given that hard copies of the survey were available to anyone who came in 
to the village hall to complete one. The survey closed on January 25th. 

The objective of this survey was to give residents a voice. Survey Monkey was used as the vehicle to 
electronically collect this data.  This was not a scientific survey.  

The question posed on the survey was: “Shall the Village of Tinley Park, in light of state legislation legalizing 
the possession, consumption and sale of recreational adult-use cannabis, allow the sale of recreational adult-
use cannabis within its jurisdiction?”  Respondents were also asked whether or not they were residents and 
97.35% or the respondents indicated that they were residents.  

The aggregate results of both the electronic (survey monkey) survey and the hard-copy surveys are: 

  Responses: 4,869 

  Yes: 2,509 - 51.53% 

  No:  2,360 - 48.47% 

 

Interoffice   

Memo 

























 
 

DISCUSS AUTHORIZING AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK AND PROVIDENCE 

BANK & TRUST CONSENTING TO THE COLLATERAL 
ASSIGNMENT OF THE SOUTH STREET 

REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT. 

 

 

BACK UP TO FOLLOW 

 



Date:   January 28, 2020 

To:   Board of Trustees and Mayor  
   David Niemeyer, Village Manager  
    
From:   Daniel Ritter, Senior Planner 
  
Subject:   Parking Use and Maintenance Agreement at 16800 Oak Park Avenue 
 
Background: 
The subject site is located 
adjacent to 16800 Oak Park 
Avenue, which is owned and 
operated by An English Garden 
Florist and Gifts. There are ten 
(10) on-street parking spaces on 
the north side of the building 
along an area of dedicated right-
of-way (R.O.W.)  The R.O.W. is 
aligned with what would be an 
extension of 168th Street. 
However, there are no current 
or future plans for a public street 
to be constructed at this 
location. The property has 
historically utilized this parking 
to meet its parking 
requirements. The businesses 
to the north also utilize the north side of this R.O.W. for parking. A Parking Use and Maintenance 
Agreement was last entered into in 2014 with the previous owner. This agreement was part of a 
negotiation with the Village to help the property owner meet parking requirements and best 
utilize a R.O.W. that only serves two private commercial lots.  

The agreement allows the owner of the property and its tenants the non-exclusive use of the 
parking along with accepting maintenance responsibilities of the parking area (including snow 
plowing, pavement striping, and landscaping).  With the transfer of ownership, a new agreement 
is required. A similar agreement was recently approved for the Veterinary Clinic at 17745-17749 
Oak Park Avenue. 



Plan Commission Discussion/ Recommendation: 
The property was previously a standalone commercial property and the new owner has decided 
to pursue a mixed-use building with An English Garden located on the ground floor commercial 
and apartment on the second floor. To convert a Heritage Site to a mixed-use building, a special 
use is required to be approved by the Village Board. A Public Hearing was held on January 16, 
2020 where the Plan Commission voted 8-0 to recommend to the Village Board approval of the 
requested Special Use with the understanding a parking lease would be approved 
simultaneously. 
 
Village Board Request:   
Consider entering into a Parking Lease and Maintenance Agreement with An English Garden, LLC to 
permit on-street parking along the south side of the 168th Street right-of-way located at 16800 
Oak Park Avenue in the NG (Neighborhood General) Zoning District. 
 



 
 

  
 

THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK 
Cook County, Illinois  
Will County, Illinois 

 
 

 
RESOLUTION 
NO. 2020-R-009  

 
 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A PARKING USE AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN AN ENGLISH GARDEN, LLC AND THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK FOR 

PROPERTY LOCATED AT 16800 OAK PARK AVENUE 
 

 
 

JACOB C. VANDENBERG, PRESIDENT 
KRISTIN A. THIRION, VILLAGE CLERK 

 
CYNTHIA A. BERG 

WILLIAM P. BRADY 
WILLIAM A. BRENNAN 

DIANE M. GALANTE 
MICHAEL W. GLOTZ 

MICHAEL G. MUELLER 
Board of Trustees 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Published in pamphlet form by authority of the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park 

  



 
 

VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK 
Cook County, Illinois 
Will County, Illinois 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2020-R-009 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING A PARKING USE AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN AN ENGLISH GARDEN, LLC AND THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK FOR 

PROPERTY LOCATED AT 16800 OAK PARK AVENUE 
  

WHEREAS,  Section 6(a) of Article VII of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois provides 
that any municipality which has a population of more than 25,000 is a home rule unit, and the Village of 
Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, with a population in excess of 25,000 is, therefore, a home 
rule unit and, pursuant to the provisions of said Section 6(a) of Article VII, may exercise any power and 
perform any function pertaining to its government and affairs, including, but not limited to, the power to 
tax and to incur debt; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park (“Village”), have 

considered entering into an Agreement with the An English Garden, LLC, a true and correct copy of 
such Parking Use and Maintenance Agreement being attached hereto and made a part hereof as 
EXHIBIT 1; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, 

Illinois, have determined that it is in the best interests of said Village of Tinley Park that said Agreement 
be entered into by the Village of Tinley Park;  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the President and Board of Trustees of the 

Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, as follows: 
 
Section 1: The Preambles hereto are hereby made a part of, and operative provisions of, this 

Resolution as fully as if completely repeated at length herein. 
 
Section 2: That this President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park hereby 

find that it is in the best interests of the Village of Tinley Park and its residents that the aforesaid 
"Agreement” be entered into and executed by said Village of Tinley Park, with said Agreement to be 
substantially in the form attached hereto and made a part hereof as EXHIBIT 1, subject to review and 
revision as to form by the Village Attorney. 

 
Section 3: That the President and Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will 

Counties, Illinois are hereby authorized to execute for and on behalf of said Village of Tinley Park the 
aforesaid Agreement. 

 
 
 
 



 
 

Section 4: That this Resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption and approval. 
ADOPTED this 4th day of February, 2020, by the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park 
on a roll call vote as follows: 
 
AYES: 
   
NAYS: 
   
ABSENT: 
   
APPROVED this 4th day of February, 2020, by the President of the Village of Tinley Park. 

 
 
                                                          

   Village President 
ATTEST: 
___________________________ 

     Village Clerk 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

 

 EXHIBIT 1 

 

  



 
 

STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 

COUNTY OF COOK  ) SS 

COUNTY OF WILL  ) 

 
 

CERTIFICATE 
 
      I, KRISTIN A. THIRION, Village Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Counties of Cook and Will 

and State of Illinois, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of 

Resolution No. 2020-R-009, “A RESOLUTION APPROVING A PARKING USE AND 

MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT BETWEEN AN ENGLISH GARDEN, LLC AND THE VILLAGE OF 

TINLEY PARK FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT 16800 OAK PARK AVENUE” which was adopted by 

the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park on February 4, 2020.  

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal of the 

Village of Tinley Park this 4th day of February, 2020. 

 

____________________________________ 

       KRISTIN A. THIRION, VILLAGE CLERK  

 
 



PARKING LICENSE AND MAINTENANCE LICENSE AGREEMENT 
 

 This Parking License and Maintenance Agreement (“License Agreement”) is made on 
_____ ___, 2019, by and between An English Garden, LLC an Illinois limited liability company, 
d/b/a An English Garden (“An English Garden”) and the Village of Tinley Park (“Village”) an 
Illinois municipal corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the state of Illinois 
(collectively “Party” or “Parties).  
 

RECITALS 
 

 WHEREAS, said An English Garden is the record owner of certain real property that is 
the subject of this License Agreement (“Subject Property”) described as follows:  
 
Legal Description: 
 
Lot 1 in Block 6 in Elmore's Oak Park Avenue Estates, being a Subdivision of the Northwest 
fractional 1A of Section 9, Township 36 North, Range 13, East of the Third Principal Meridian 
(except that part of the drainage ditch conveyed by Document Number 377150), according to the 
plat thereof recorded April 25, 1929 as Document Number 10351098, in Cook County, Illinois. 
 
PIN: 28-30-107-007-0000 
 
Commonly known as:  16800 Oak Park Avenue, Tinley Park, Illinois 
 
 WHEREAS, said An English Garden currently operates a florist and retail store at the 
Subject Property; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Village owns a strip of land, which is utilized as a paved parking area, 
immediately north of the Subject Property and immediately south of the 168th Street/Tinley Park 
Drive extension (“North Lot”), described in the attached Exhibit A; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the An English Garden is among the primary beneficiary of the North Lot and 
said An English Garden requires the associated parking spaces to meet the minimum parking 
requirements as described in the Zoning Ordinance; and   
 
 WHEREAS, said An English Garden shall be liable for the continued maintenance and 
care of the North Lot in exchange for the Village’s promise to allow the Business to utilize the 
parking spaces on the North Lot; and  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and obligations contained 
herein and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 
acknowledged, Village and An English Garden agree as follows:  

 
 

 



SECTION ONE 
PARKING USE LICENSE AGREEMENT 

 
The Village hereby grants to An English Garden and its respective agents, employees, business 

invitees, and the general public, a non-exclusive license to use the North Lot for parking motor 
vehicles. An English Garden shall not restrict, in any way, the right of the general public to use 
the parking spaces located on the North Lot.  
 

The Village may state the hours of use granted by this License Agreement on signs erected 
pursuant to its authority to regulate traffic and parking along the Village’s roadways. 

 
SECTION TWO 

TERM 
 
 The Term of this License Agreement will commence on ______ ___, 2019, and will 
continue for as long as the An English Garden owns the Subject Property, provided no Party is in 
breach of this License Agreement, the Village is enforcing the parking restrictions contained 
herein, and   
 

SECTION THREE 
ASSIGNMENT  

 
 This License Agreement shall not be assigned unless specifically approved in writing by 
the Village. This License Agreement will automatically cease and terminate on the sale, 
conveyance, transfer or other disposition of the Subject Property.  
 

SECTION FOUR 
ALTERATIONS 

 
 An English Garden shall not make any alterations, changes, or additions in or to the North 
Lot unless and until the written consent of the Village has been approved in writing by the Village 
Board of Trustees.  

SECTION FIVE  
MAINTENANCE 

 
 Except to the extent caused by the Village’s negligence or willful and wanton conduct, An 
English Garden, at their sole cost and expense, shall maintain and repair the North Lot, including 
but not limited to resurfacing, repaving, striping, and curb repair, if applicable, removing snow, 
ice and other debris from the North Lot; and otherwise taking the reasonable and necessary and 
appropriate measures to keep the North Lot in a clean, attractive, safe, unobstructed, good and 
usable condition.  
 
 
 
 
 



SECTION SIX  
COMPLIANCE WITH LAW 

 
Each party will at its own expense comply with all federal, state, and local laws now or 

later in force which may be applicable to An English Garden’s operation in the Village. An English 
Garden will obtain and pay for all permits, licenses, and other authorizations which may be 
required for its activities contemplated by this License Agreement.  

 
SECTION SEVEN 

WAIVER 
 

 No waiver by any Party of any default on the part of any Party in the performance of any 
of the terms, covenants, or conditions of this License Agreement to be performed, kept, or observed 
by the defaulting Party shall be or be construed to be a waiver by the non-defaulting Party or any 
other subsequent default in the performance of any terms, covenants, or conditions of this License 
Agreement to be performed, kept or observed by the defaulting Party.  
 

SECTION EIGHT 
TERMINATION  

 
 The Village shall have the right, upon thirty (30) days prior written notice to An English 
Garden to terminate or modify the rights granted pursuant to this License Agreement as necessary 
to facilitate the expansion, improvement, beautification, or removal of the Right-of-Way or the 
North Lot; provided, however, should the Village so modify the rights granted to An English 
Garden pursuant to this License Agreement, An English Garden shall have the right to terminate 
this License Agreement within thirty (30) days of the Village’s written notice of such termination 
or modification.  

 
SECTION NINE 
AMENDMENT 

 
This License Agreement may be modified or amended in whole or in part only by a written 

instrument executed by the Parties.  
 

SECTION TEN  
ENTIRE LICENSE AGREEMENT  

 
This License Agreement and the exhibits to this License Agreement contain all the 

representations and the entire agreement between the Parties with respect to the subject matter of 
this License Agreement. Any prior correspondence, memoranda, or agreements are superseded in 
total by this License Agreement and the exhibits to this License Agreement. No Party has relied 
on any representations, written or verbal, of any other Party other than those express written 
representations made within this License Agreement.  

 
 
 



SECTION ELEVEN  
INDEMNIFICATION  

 
 An English Garden shall hold harmless, defend and indemnify the Village, its Board 
Members, officers, agents, and employees, from and against any liability, claim, action, cost, 
damage or loss, including reasonable costs and attorneys’ fees, for injury, including death, to any 
person or damage to any property arising out of An English Garden’s activities under this License 
Agreement. This indemnification obligation shall also apply to the three-car frame garage that 
illegally encroaches up to 5.52 feet into the Village’s right-of-way property. This Section in no 
way grants building or zoning approvals for the non-conforming garage. This obligation shall 
continue beyond the term of this License Agreement to any act or omission which occurred during 
or under this License Agreement. This indemnification obligation is not limited in any way by any 
limitation on the amount or type of damages or compensation payable to or for An English Garden 
or its employees or agents under workers’ compensation acts, disability benefit acts, or other 
employee benefit acts.  
 

SECTION TWELVE  
LICENSE ONLY/RECORDATION  

 
This License Agreement may be recorded in the public records. Notwithstanding anything 

contained herein to the contrary, this License Agreement is intended to  create  only license rights 
with use of the North Lot and no agency, partnership, joint venture, lease, tenancy, leasehold  or  
other  right  or  interest  of  any  kind  or  nature  (other  than  a  license)  is  created  or conferred 
pursuant to this License Agreement.  

 
SECTION THIRTEEN 

TAX EXEMPTION  
 

The North Lot is currently exempt from real estate taxes. The Parties intend that the North 
Lot remain tax exempt. The Village shall continue to take the necessary actions to retain the tax-
exempt status. However, shall the North Lot lose the tax-exempt status because of this License 
Agreement, An English Garden shall be jointly and severally liable for any taxes imposed.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



SECTION FOURTEEN 
NOTICE 

 
All notices and other communications shall be in writing and shall be deemed properly 

served if delivered in person to the party to whom it is addressed two (2) days after deposit in the 
U. S. mail if sent postage prepaid by United States registered or certified mail, return receipt 
requested, addressed as follows:  

 
All notices to the Village of Tinley Park shall be sent to: 

 
Village Manager 
Village of Tinley Park 
16250 South Oak Park Avenue 
Tinley Park, Illinois 60477 

 
 
 

All notices to Grantor shall be sent to: 
 
 An English Garden 
 Attn: Kim McAuliffe 
 16800 Oak Park Avenue 
 Tinley Park, Illinois 60477 
  

or to such other address as a Party may designate for itself by notice given from time to 
time to the other Party in the manner provided herein.  

 
SECTION FIFTEEN 

EXHIBITS 
 

All exhibits attached hereto are incorporated by reference and made a part of this License 
Agreement.  
 
 

(Signature pages follow) 



 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this License Agreement on the day 
and year written below. 

 

VILLAGE: 

 

THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK 
 

 

By:  _________________________ 

 

Its:  _________________________ 

 

Date: ________________________ 

AN ENGLISH GARDEN: 

 

AN ENGLISH GARDEN, LLC 

 

By: _______________________________ 

 

Its:  _______________________________ 

 

Date:  _____________________________ 

 
 
STATE OF ILLINOIS 
COUNTY OF COOK 
COUNTY OF WILL 
 
I, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for Cook and Will Counties, in the State of Illinois, do 
hereby CERTIFY THAT the _______________, is personally know to me be the same person 
whose name are subscribed to the foregoing instrument, appeared before me this day in person, 
and acknowledged that they signed, sealed, and delivered that said instrument as their free and 
voluntary act, for the uses and purposes therein set forth, including the release and waiver of the 
right of Homestead.  

Given under my hand and official seal, this _____ day ______________, 2019.  

______________________________________ 

(Notary Public)  

 



Exhibit A 

 

 



1 
 

 
 
 
Date: January 31, 2020 
 
To: David Niemeyer, Village Manager   
   
From: Denise Maiolo, Director of Human Resources 
 
Subject: Civil Service Rules & Regulations Update 
 
A summary of the updated Rules and Regulations of the Civil Service Commission was presented at Admin 
and Legal Committee on January 14, 2020 following meetings and discussions between Village Attorney, 
Human Resources Director and the Civil Service Commissioners. At Committee level, the Trustees raised 
questions regarding the proposed point system for lateral hire patrol officer applicants. who would present 
themselves for testing as administered by the Civil Service Commission, for the position of Patrol Officer A1. 
 
Background 
The comprehensive review of the existing Rules and Regulations of the Civil Service Commission was 
completed in order to determine if the Rules and Regulations from 1997 adequately addressed the current 
landscape for employee recruitment and hiring. No comprehensive review had been undertaken in over 20 
years since their adoption in 1977.  Instead, only minor changes had been made to certain portions of the 
Rules and Regulations, as needed. Also included in this review were the changes in, and use of, technology 
since adoption of the Rules and Regulations in 1997, in order to determine whether or not the existing Rules 
and Regulations provided clear guidelines for all Commissioners, members of the public and potential 
employees.  
 
Point System  
The current rules and regulations include the following point system, already in place.  These include:   

• 5 points for Mitary Preference when requested and proved. This applies to original 
examinations/testing of non-promotional positions such as Mechanic and Patrol Officer, Military 
preference points are required by IL Municipal Code. 
 

• Seven tenths of one point for every six months of active military service or 3.5 points for Military 
Preference when requested and proved. This applies to promotional examinations/testing of 
promotional positions such as Sergeant or Lead Telecommunicator. Military Preference points are 
required by IL Municipal Code.  
 

• Up to 5 points for Seniority.  Applies only to promotional testing (Sergeant/Lead 
Telecommunicator). Seniority points are an option under the IL Municipal Code. 
 

• Up to 10 points for Merit & Efficiency for Police and up to 12 points for 911 Dispatch. Applies only 
to promotional testing (Sergeant/Lead Telecommunicator). Merit and Efficiency points are an 
option under the IL Municipal Code.  

 
  

Interoffice   

Memo 



2 
 

Proposed Additional Points 
The new Rules and Regulations propose the following additional “experience preference” points:  

• Up to 5 additional “experience preference” points for only new lateral hire applicants; 
• Only available to those Civil Service Applicants who have successfully completed the written 

examination and personal interview portions of testing process; 
• These applicants must also be currently certified Illinois police officers who have already 

completed Academy through another municipality.  
 
These experience preference points for only new lateral hires was recommended by Police Chief Walsh in 
order to address the Village Board’s concerns to expedite  hiring of qualified officers and move them 
through the hiring process faster.  
 
Option 
Allow  up to 2 additional “experience preference” points for only new lateral hire applicants, as detailed 
above. 
 
Current Register 
The current Eligiblity Register for Patrol Officer is dated November 1, 2019 and contains 29 candidate, 
many of whom are already certified Illinois police officers. This is a unique situation that has not occurred 
in recent years of testing.  Additional experience preference points could allow the certified officers to 
move through the eligibility register faster, and if successful in pre employment testing, allow them to be 
appointed, hired, undergo field training and placed on the street within a shorter timeframe. 
 
Duration of Field Training is approximately 16 weeks and is conducted by current Tinely Park officers. In 
the case of lateral hires.  Duration of Police Academy is approximately 14 weeks and, as an employee,  the 
candidate would receive full pay and benefits while attending Police Academy. Entry patrol officers earn 
$35.12/hr. The cost savings to the Village, at 40 hours per week for the duration of Academy, is as follows: 

Cost of a New Patrol Officer for 14 Weeks  
Salary $35.12 per hour for 560 hours 19,667.20  
Medicare 1.45% 285.17 
Health 
Insurance 

Assume Family Coverage $1036.66/pay payroll for 7 
payrolls 7,256.62 

GTL $9.75 per month for 3 months 29.25 

  27,238.24  
Note that this figure does not include uniform (approximately $3,000) or FTO officer training costs. 
Note also that as new hire demonstrates proficiency, FTO training may be abbreviated, at the 
recommendation of FTO officer and approval of Police Chief, adding to cost savings. 
 
cc: Police Chief Matthew Walsh 
    
 
 
 

 



 

 

PUBLIC 
COMMENT 

 



 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 


	020420 COW Agenda Packet
	020420 Cow Agenda
	Item #2 011420 COW Minutes Draft
	Item #3 Cannabis
	Item #4 PMP
	Item #5 Collateral Assign. So. St. Redevelopment
	Item #6 English Garden Parking
	Item #7 Civil Service
	PUBLIC COMMENT
	ADJOURNMENT


